
 
CITY OF ELKHORN 

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
October 7, 2019, 5:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers, City Hall, 9 S. Broad St., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 
 

1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Roll Call 
4) Public Comment Although the public may speak on any item that is not included on this agenda as a 

“Public Hearing or Forum”, the Council may not respond or discuss the issue brought forward at this time. In 
accordance with open meeting laws the Council must notice an item on the agenda to allow discussion on 
that matter. Your comments will be considered and may be placed on a future agenda for further discussion. 

5) Consent Agenda (One motion & a second will approve all of the following items listed. Any item may be 
pulled from the list and handled separately.)  
a) Council Meeting Minutes for September 16, 2019 and Special Council on September 23, 2019 
b) Temporary Alcohol Beverage Licenses: 

i) Elkhorn Area Chamber of Commerce:  Fermented Malt Beverage for Multi Chamber 
Business After Hours, October 9, 2019, 4:00 – 9:00 p.m.; and Fermented Malt 
Beverage/Wine for Oktoberfest, October 19, 2019, 11:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

ii) Walworth County Historical Society: Fermented Malt Beverage and Wine for Salute and 
Swing “USO” Dance, November 2, 2019 6:00 – 11:30 p.m. 

6) Report of City Officers  
a) Mayor 
b) City Administrator 

7) Committee Reports 
a) Committee of the Whole 

i) Recommendation to Replace Traffic Signals at N. Wisconsin St. and W. Market St. 
Intersection (Budget Adjustment) 

8) Unfinished Business 
a) Utility Easement for Great Lakes Components, 203 W. Centralia St. 

9) New Business 
a) Request to Fill Vacant Public Works Crewman Position 
b) Kapur Task Order #5 for 2020 Street Improvement Program: Reconstruct portions of Court, 

Page, and Getzen Streets 
c) TID #4 Improvements Project – Super Western Utility Delay Claim 

10) Adjourn  
 

DATED at Elkhorn, Wisconsin, this 4th day of October 2019  
 

Cairie L. Virrueta, City Clerk  
 
Should you have any questions or comments regarding any items on this agenda, please contact the City Clerk’s office at 
723-2219. Upon reasonable notice to the City Clerk, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals 
through appropriate aids and services. 



 
CITY OF ELKHORN COMMON COUNCIL 

MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2019 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 9 S. BROAD ST., ELKHORN, WI 53121 
 
The Common Council meeting was called to order by Mayor Reynolds at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present:   Mayor Howie Reynolds, Aldermen Tim Shiroda, Frank Boggs, Scott McClory, Karel Young   
Absent:  Tom Myrin, Ron Dunwiddie 
Others present: City Administrator Jim Heilman, Attorney Ward Phillips, Deputy Clerk Lacey Reynolds, 
Police Chief Joel Christensen, DPW Manager Matthew Lindstrom, Fire Chief Rod Smith, City Engineer Greg 
Calhoun, Recreation Director Karl Sorvick, Chris Clapper, Larry Gaffey, other interested persons 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion (McClory/Young) to approve the minutes of the September 3, 2019 Common Council & Public 
Safety meetings and September 9, 2019 Financial & Judicial, Legislative & Regulatory, Municipal Services 
& Utilities meetings.  Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
 
Request to withdraw Temporary Class “B” Beer License for Plaza de Mexico on October 12, 2019 from the 
agenda as it will no longer take place. 
 
Larry Gaffey asked about modifying a beer license for a September 22, 2019 event and moving the event 
to October 6, 2019. City Attorney Phillips said it has to be on the agenda to change it.  It will need to come 
back for approval.  City Administrator Jim Heilman suggested a special meeting of the Council for 
September 23, 2019 to approve the update.   
 
Motion (Young/Shiroda) to approve the Walworth County Ag Society Temporary Class “B” Beer License 
for a Concert, October 11, 2019 from 5 p.m. to 11:30 p.m.  Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
Alderman McClory would like to discuss at the next Legislative & Regulatory meeting times for events at 
the fairgrounds and associated noise levels.       
 
BILLS PAYABLE 
Motion (McClory/Shiroda) to approve the City and Utility Bills in the amount of $2,228,327.22 (check 
numbers 160367-160535). Roll call vote: Young, yes; McClory, yes; Boggs, yes; Shiroda, yes; Motion 
carried. 
 
REPORT OF CITY OFFICERS 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
None. 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
A special thank you to the Elkhorn Area High School, students and the Chamber for organizing the Day of 
Action.  The Fire Advisory Steering Committee will be meeting September 26, 2019.  The committee has 
coordinated on a referendum, which will continue into 2020.  Now working on public information in 
regards to volunteer fire fighters and bringing in full time fire fighters.   
 
LIAISON COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 



City of Elkhorn Common Council Meeting, Page 2 
 

Fire Advisory Board – no report 
Library Board – no report 
Recreation Advisory Board – Frank Boggs reported the next meeting would be Wednesday October 2, 2019 
Chamber – Chris Clapper reported on the EASD Day of Action and upcoming events 
Fire Advisory Steering Committee – See City Administrators Report 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
Recommendation to approve Police Department Revisions Regarding Bias-Based Policing (#401), Vehicle 
Towing and Release (#502) and Impaired Driving (#504). At the Public Safety meeting, it was a unanimous 
recommendation.  Resolution under new Business, see below.  
 
FINANCIAL AND JUDICIAL 
Derek with the EEDA came in requesting funds the same as last year.  Also requested extending the 
building improvement grant.  With the new Holiday Inn Express there will be more funds coming in to 
allow for more funding.    
Motion (McClory/Shiroda) to approve funding for 2020 to the EEDA in the amount of $20,000 and extend 
the current building improvement grant program for 2020 up to $50,000 with recommended meetings 
between the City Administrator and the EEDA. Roll call vote, Tim Shiroda, yes; Frank Boggs, yes; Scott 
McClory, yes; Karel Young, yes; Motion carried. 
 
Discussion on the Schedule for 2020 Budget Schedule.  
Going into the 2020 budget schedule cycle would like to have fewer Committee of the Whole and budget 
workshops.    
 
LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY 
Motion (Young/Shiroda) to conditionally approve Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License for 
Holiday Inn Express.  Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
 
Discussion on changes to City Ordinance regarding open burning.  Updating the information on where a 
resident can burn and what can be burned.  The City has leaf pick up and the drop off site for yard waste 
and leaves.  City Administrator Jim Heilman said he hopes to have the update ready by Spring 2020.   
 
MUNICIPAL SERVICES AND UTILITIES 
Recommendation to Replace Water Services, The Pines Subdivision 
The copper pipe is inadequate and needs to be replaced before the streets are fixed.  Motion 
(Boggs/Shiroda) to have Kapur do a study for the road improvements and have a RFP for spring 2020.  
Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
 
Discussion on 1985 Annexation Agreement with Oakwood/Green Acres Subdivision.  Alderman Boggs said 
there have been multiple complaints about the streets in this subdivision.  This is a rural/residential zone 
and his district.  Alderman Boggs believes the City needs to make contact with the residents and meet with 
them in regards to this agreement.  The City Administrator and Public Works Manager are aware of the 
concerns and plan to have meetings with the residents.  
 
Recommendation to Widen and Improve a Portion of E Page Street in 2020 
The section of E Page Street is an outlet of the fairgrounds parking lot and becomes a one-way street 
during fair time, Public Works Manager Matthew Lindstrom said.  It is recommended to widen .E Page 
Street to the minimum of 28 ft. with sidewalk, curb and gutter at a cost of $113,445.  Motion 
(Boggs/Young) to go forward with widening and improving E. Page Street and incorporate into the 2020 
budget. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 



City of Elkhorn Common Council Meeting, Page 3 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Ordinance 19-06 An Ordinance to Adopt Wisconsin Administrative Code SPS 316 and 324 related to 
Electrical Code (Second Reading) 
Motion (McClory/Boggs) to approve Ordinance 19-06, An Ordinance to Adopt Wisconsin Administrative 
Code SPS 316 and 324 related to Electrical Code.  Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
 
Resolution No. 19-10 To name Ehlers and Associates Inc. as Pay Agent for the City of Elkhorn General 
Obligation & Revenue Bond Principal and Interest Payments 
Motion (Shiroda/Young) to name Ehlers and Associates as Pay Agent.  Voice vote, all approved, motion 
carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 19-12 Police Department Policy Updates 
Motion (Boggs/McClory) to approve Resolution No. 19-12 Police Department Policy Updates.  Voice vote, 
all approved, motion carried. 
 
ADJOURN 
Motion (McClory/Shiroda) to adjourn at 6:21 p.m. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
 
 
Lacey L. Reynolds 
Deputy Clerk 



CITY OF ELKHORN 
Committee of the Whole Minutes 

Common Council Chambers, 9 S. Broad Street, Elkhorn, Wisconsin 
 

September 23, 2019 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Reynolds at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Special Common Council Meeting 
Roll Call 
Present:   Mayor Howie Reynolds, Aldermen Frank Boggs, Ron Dunwiddie, Karel Young, Scott McClory, Tom 
Myrin, Tim Shiroda  
Others present: Administrator James Heilman, City Clerk Cairie Virrueta, City Attorney Ward Phillips, Police 
Chief Joel Christensen, DPW Manager Matthew Lindstrom, Utility Director John Murphy, Fire Chief Rod Smith, 
Recreation Director Karl Sorvick, Kellen Olshefski 
 
Temporary Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage Licenses for Walworth County Agricultural Society 
• Flat Track Racing, October 5, 2019, 12:00 – 10:00 p.m. 
• Plaza de Mexico, October 6, 2019, 12:00 – 10:00 p.m. 
Motion (McClory/Dunwiddie) to approve the temporary beer licenses as presented.  Voice vote, all 
approved, motion carried.  
 
Adjourn 
Motion (Dunwiddie/Shiroda) to adjourn the Special Council Meeting.  Voice vote, all approved, motion 
carried.  Adjourned at 5:01 p.m.    
 
Committee of the Whole Meeting 
Roll Call 
Present:   Mayor Howie Reynolds, Aldermen Frank Boggs, Ron Dunwiddie, Karel Young, Scott McClory, Tom 
Myrin, Tim Shiroda  
 
Traffic Signals at N. Wisconsin St. and W. Market St. Intersection 
DPW Manager Lindstrom said the signals are not timing correctly and the processor needs replacing.  They 
are 17-18 years old and he recommended also replacing the cameras which have been giving issues when 
there are winds and snow.  The new processor will work with the current cameras, however.  He also 
suggested upgrading the monitor as the current one is very fuzzy.  Administrator Heilman said this is not 
budgeted and would require a budget adjustment.  Money would come from the contingency fund, which 
has over one million dollars available.  Motion (Shiroda/Myrin) to recommend a budget adjustment to 
replace signals and monitor, including installation, at N. Wisconsin St. and W. Market St. for $10,906.  
Roll call vote:  Shiroda, yes; Boggs, yes; Dunwiddie, yes; McClory, yes; Myrin, yes; Young, yes.  Motion 
carried.  Alderman Shiroda asked if the installation cost is the same without the cameras; yes.  Alderman 
Shiroda asked if this is a state expense; no, it is not, it is a city street.  He also asked if more bids can be 
obtained.  DPW Manager Lindstrom said in his experience Tapco is a sole source for the products.  These 
would be the same cameras as used on Highway 67.  Motion (Myrin/Dunwiddie) to approve replacing the 
cameras in the amount of $6,568.  Roll call vote:  Shiroda, yes; Boggs, yes; Dunwiddie, yes; McClory, yes; 
Myrin, yes; Young, yes.  Motion carried.   
 
2020 Budget Discussion:  Capital Improvement Plan / Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Plan 
Administrator Heilman reviewed items in the plans for 2020.  They include street maintenance and crack 
sealing, street work in The Pines, city hall relocation, and work at Babe Mann.  Also included are Court St. 
and E. Page St. work.  Mayor Reynolds would like to see Getzen done in 2020.  He asked if it had to have 
curb and gutter; DPW Lindstrom said it was needed as more traffic is anticipated on it with the DPW being 
there and it will help properly drain the area.  Alderman McClory asked if the work could be done in two 



years; the design would be done in one year and the work could be done in two different years.  
Administrator Heilman said the DOT is doing work on the bridge over Centralia and recommended doing 
work on it first as the bridge closing will shut down the road.  Mayor Reynolds asked if money left from 
constructing the DPW building could be used towards Getzen; Administrator Heilman will look into it.  He 
will move the work on Getzen to the 2020 budget.  The Committee reviewed vehicles to be replaced in 
2020.  Mayor Reynolds asked when Loves and the hotel would go on the tax roll?  Administrator Heilman 
said he expects them to be fully on by 2021.  He said a restaurant, coffee shop and juice bar are also in the 
future plans for Loves.  The Committee also reviewed the debt schedules for the City. 
 
Adjourn 
Motion (Shiroda/Young) to adjourn at 5:46 p.m.  Voice vote, all approved. 
 
 
Cairie L. Virrueta 
City Clerk 









 
WR NO. 4419946  IO NO. MES17207500 
 
For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, CITY OF ELKHORN, hereinafter referred to as 
"Grantor", owner of land, hereby grants and warrants to WISCONSIN 
ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY, a Wisconsin corporation doing 
business as We Energies, hereinafter referred to as "Grantee", a 
permanent easement upon, within, beneath, over and across a part of 
Grantor’s land hereinafter referred to as "easement area". 
 
The easement area is described as strips of land 12 feet in width being a 
part of the Grantor's premises located in the Northeast 1/4 of Section 1, 
Township 2 North, Range 16 East, City of Elkhorn, Walworth County, 
Wisconsin. 
 
The location of the easement area with respect to Grantor’s land is as 
shown on the attached drawing, marked Exhibit “A”, and made a part of this 
document. 
 
1. Purpose: The purpose of this easement is to construct, install, operate, 

maintain repair, replace and extend underground utility facilities, pipeline 
or pipelines with valves, tie ins, main laterals and service laterals, 
together with all necessary and appurtenant equipment under and above 
ground, including cathodic protection apparatus used for corrosion control, as deemed necessary by Grantee, for the 
transmission and distribution of natural gas and all by-products thereof, or any liquids, gases, or substances which 
can or may be transported or distributed through a pipeline, including the customary growth and replacement thereof. 
Trees, bushes, branches and roots may be trimmed or removed so as not to interfere with Grantee's use of the 
easement area. 

 
2. Access:  Grantee or its agents shall have the right to enter and use Grantor's land with full right of ingress and egress 

over and across the easement area and adjacent lands of Grantor for the purpose of exercising its rights in the 
easement area. 

 
3. Buildings or Other Structures:  Grantor agrees that no structures will be erected in the easement area or in such 

close proximity to Grantee's facilities as to create a violation of all applicable State of Wisconsin gas codes or any 
amendments thereto. 

 
4. Elevation:  Grantor agrees that the elevation of the ground surface existing as of the date of the initial installation of 

Grantee's facilities within the easement area will not be altered by more than 4 inches without the written consent of 
Grantee. 

 
5. Restoration:  Grantee agrees to restore or cause to have restored Grantor's land, as nearly as is reasonably 

possible, to the condition existing prior to such entry by Grantee or its agents.  This restoration, however, does not 
apply to the initial installation of said facilities or to any trees, bushes, branches or roots which may interfere with 
Grantee's use of the easement area. 

 
6. Exercise of Rights:  It is agreed that the complete exercise of the rights herein conveyed may be gradual and not 

fully exercised until sometime in the future, and that none of the rights herein granted shall be lost by non-use. 
 
7. Binding on Future Parties:  This grant of easement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, 

successors and assigns of all parties hereto. 
 
8. Easement Review: Grantor acknowledges receipt of materials which describe Grantor’s rights and options in the 

easement negotiation process and furthermore acknowledges that Grantor has had at least 5 days to review this 
easement document or voluntarily waives the five day review period. 

 

 

Document Number

 
DISTRIBUTION EASEMENT 

GAS 
  

RETURN TO: 
We Energies 
PROPERTY RIGHTS & INFORMATION GROUP 
231 W. MICHIGAN STREET, ROOM P129 
PO BOX 2046 
MILWAUKEE, WI  53201-2046 
 

YU SW00053G 
(Parcel Identification Number) 



 
 
 Grantor: 
 

CITY OF ELKHORN 
 
 
 By   
 
 (Print name and title):   
 
 
 By   
 
 (Print name and title):   
 
 
 
Personally came before me in   County, Wisconsin on  , 2019, 
 
the above named  , the   
 
and  , the   
 
of the CITY OF ELKHORN. 
 
 
 
   
 Notary Public Signature, State of Wisconsin 
 
 
   
 Notary Public Name (Typed or Printed) 
 
 
(NOTARY STAMP/SEAL) My commission expires   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This instrument was drafted by Tracy Zwiebel on behalf of Wisconsin Electric Power Company, PO Box 2046, Milwaukee, 
Wisconsin 53201-2046. 



D:\Walworth_Co\Elkhorn_City\Gov\_Task_Orders\Proposed Task Orders\Task12_2020 Elkhorn Street Improvement Program\Task 12_2020_Street Improvement Program.doc  Page 1 of 2 

TASK ORDER NUMBER #05 
CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
This task order is made as of October 4, 2019, under the terms and conditions 

established in the MASTER AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES, (the 
Agreement), between the City of Elkhorn (Owner) and Kapur & Associates, Inc. 
(Engineer).  This Task Order is made for the following purpose: 
 
Provide civil engineering services for the design and specification preparation, and 
bidding for the City of Elkhorn 2020 Elkhorn Street Improvement Program.  The streets 
slated for reconstruction include: 
 
Reconstructing Streets: From     To 
Court Street   Griffin Street    N. Church Street 
Page Street   N. Lincoln Street.   East Termini 
Getzen Street    E. Centralia Street   South Termini 
 
 
  
Section A. – Scope of Services 
 
Engineer shall perform the following Services: 
 
Plan Preparation Activities 
 

1. Provide topographic survey and resultant basemap for Court Street, Page 
Street, and Getzen Street for above limits. 
 

2. Provide construction plans for Court Street, Page Street, and Getzen Street.  
Plans to include location and detail of removals, new asphaltic pavement, curb 
and gutter replacement, sidewalk additions, sanitary sewer and storm sewer 
improvements on Court Street, hydrant replacements on Court Street, storm 
sewer improvements on Page Street, and existing sanitary sewer, storm sewer 
and water valve adjustments. 

 
3. Provide a summary table to present a breakdown of quantities by street 

segment as information to bidder.  Information may include but not limited to 
the length, width, square yardage of repair, number of manholes, number of 
inlets, type of asphalt and length of curb replacement (if necessary).  

 
4. Provide details as needed to complete work. 

 
5. Prepare and provide Project Manual including but not limited to 

Advertisement for Bids, Instruction to Bidders, Bid Form, Bidder’s 
Qualification Statement, Agreement, and General Conditions of Contract, 
Supplementary Conditions, and Special Provisions. 

 
6. Address and respond to bidder’s questions, attend bid opening, review bids, 

make recommendation for award, and coordinate notice of award, agreement 
and notice to proceed documentation between City and selected contractor. 

 



D:\Walworth_Co\Elkhorn_City\Gov\_Task_Orders\Proposed Task Orders\Task12_2020 Elkhorn Street Improvement Program\Task 12_2020_Street Improvement Program.doc  Page 2 of 2 

 
Section B. – Schedule 
 
Engineer shall perform the Scope of Services and deliver the related Documents 
according a schedule agreed upon between the Owner and Engineer.  A preliminary 
schedule is as follows: 
 
1. Provide Final Plans and Specification to the Department of Public Works for bid 

in early 2020. 
2. Bids due on or before a date in early 2020 to be decided by Department of Public 

Works and Engineer. 
 
 
Section C. – Compensation 
 
In return for the performance of the foregoing obligations, Owner shall pay to Engineer 
an amount not-to-exceed One Hundred Twenty Four Thousand One Hundred Twenty 
Eight Dollars and no cents ($124,128.00) payable according to the following terms: 
 
A not-to-exceed amount based on the rates as listed in Attachment A of the Agreement, 
plus direct expenses.  Cost plus services are limited to an agreed maximum figure unless 
amended.   
 
Engineer may request a change to the billing hours if scope changes, beyond the control 
of the Engineer, resulting in an extension of the schedule or necessitates a change in 
personnel. 
 
Compensation for Additional Services (if any) shall be paid by Owner to Engineer 
according to the hourly billing rates shown in Attachment A of the Agreement. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and Engineer have executed the Task Order. 
 
Owner: City of Elkhorn     Engineer: Kapur & Associates, Inc. 
 
By:        By: Gregory R. Calhoun 
 
 
Signature:       Signature:      
 
Title:        Title: Project Engineer 
 
Date:        Date:                  



Kapur Associates, Inc.
Summary of Staff Hours and  Labor Costs

for the City of Elkhorn
 


CLASSIFICATION

Average Hourly Wage

Administration and Coordination
Contract Administration 6 $576.00 6 $576.00

Field Survey
Field Survey and Topographic Mapping 14 $2,002.00 36 $2,916.00 76 $7,980.00 126 $12,898.00

Court Street Reconstruction
Final Plans/Review 8 $1,144.00 32 $3,072.00 120 $9,840.00 160 $14,056.00

Meetings as required 8 $768.00 8 $768.00
Roadway Design and Grading 40 $3,840.00 120 $9,840.00 160 $13,680.00

Sanitary Sewer Design 40 $3,840.00 80 $6,560.00 120 $10,400.00
Storm Sewer Design 40 $3,840.00 80 $6,560.00 120 $10,400.00

Permitting 32 $3,072.00 32 $2,624.00 64 $5,696.00

Subtotal 632 $55,000.00

Page Street Reconstruction
Final Plans/Review 8 $1,144.00 32 $3,072.00 80 $6,560.00 120 $10,776.00

Meetings as required 4 $384.00 4 $384.00
Roadway Design and Grading 40 $3,840.00 40 $3,280.00 80 $7,120.00

Storm sewer design 16 $1,536.00 40 $3,280.00 56 $4,816.00

Subtotal 260 $23,096.00

Getzen Street Reconstruction
Final Plans/Review 8 $1,144.00 32 $3,072.00 80 $6,560.00 120 $10,776.00

Meetings as required 4 $384.00 4 $384.00
Roadway Design and Grading 40 $3,840.00 40 $3,280.00 80 $7,120.00

Subtotal 204 $18,280.00
Project Manual/Administration

Administration 20 $1,920.00 20 $1,920.00
Advertisement/Project Manual 32 $3,072.00 40 $3,280.00 72 $6,352.00

Attend Bid Opening 2 $192.00 1 $82.00 3 $274.00
Post Bid Opening Activities 2 $192.00 8 $656.00 10 $848.00

Meetings as Required 4 $384.00 4 $384.00
Subtotal 109 $9,778.00

TOTALS 24 $5,434.00 -$                420 $40,896.00 761 $62,402.00 $2,916.00 -$             $7,980.00 2410 $119,628

$4,500

$124,128

Soil Borings 5 $500.00 $2,500.00
Soil Boring Report $2,000.00 $2,000.00

Totals $4,500.00

Project Total:

 GIS Technician 

$84.00

Hours DollarsHours

 Surveyor Staff Engineer IIProject Engineer Total  Labor

Dollars

$105.00

TASK ORDER 12 - 2020 Elkhorn Street Improvement Program
Attachment A

$96.00
ACT. 
Code

$82.00

 Survey Crew 

Hours DollarsHours

 Project Manager 

$143.00

Hours Dollars

 Senior Project 
Engineer 

$116.00

Hours Dollars

Expenses:

Summary of Expenses Units Cost Total

TASK DESCRIPTION Hours Dollars

 SeniorTechnician  

$81.00

Hours DollarsDollars HoursDollars

$98.00

Kapur Associates Hours Page 1 10/2/2019



kapurinc.com 

1224 Pine Street 
Burlington, WI 53105 

T: 262.767.2747 •  F: 414.351.4117 
 

  

 
   
   Page 1 

 
 

MMEEMMOORRAANNDDUUMM  TTOO  TTHHEE  CCIITTYY  OOFF  EELLKKHHOORRNN
To:  Matt Lindstrom, Jim Heilman

From: Greg Calhoun 

Date: September 11th, 2019 

Re: TID #4 Improvements Project – Super Western Utility Delay Claim 

 

As part of the TID #4 Project this past year, several delays were encountered due to underground utility conflicts 
which inhibited the contractor’s ability to progress the project as anticipated. Several of the delays were outside 
of the contractor’s ability to control, and they had to adjust their operations and schedule as a result.  
 
Specifically, Super Western, the earthwork contractor, has submitted a claim to the City to be reimbursed for 
several losses they feel were caused by the utility delays. Their claim and all received supporting documentation 
is attached to this memo. In summary, Super Western is requesting to be reimbursed for: 
 

- 2 extra days of crew time for common excavation due to Spectrum and Charter conflicts at O’Connor 
and Tasch Drives - $4,654.47 

- 2 extra days equipment for common excavation due to Spectrum and Charter conflicts at O’Connor 
and Tasch Drives - $4143.74 

- ½ month rent for excavator rented for project due to 10 days of delays caused by TDS pedestals on 
Commerce Court - $5780.50 

- Dumpsite charges due to Super Western losing ability to use a free dumpsite they were planning on 
using, but had filled up before they could - $8800.00 

- Total = $23,378.72 
 
Kapur has reviewed this claim, compared provided dates to our own field notes and dates, requested additional 
backup information, and reviewed revised versions of the claim. We have come to the following conclusions. 
 
Each of the encountered delays are determined as valid. On O’Connor and Tasch Drives, several utilities were 
not relocated as originally anticipated and caused the loss of Super Western being able to work for 2 days. Their 
request to be reimbursed for the crew time and equipment for those 2 days is seen as valid. 
 
On Commerce Court, TDS’s pedestals were not relocated in a timely manner, and additional delays were 
encountered due to utility lines that were relocated too shallow. The 10 days lost due to these delays is seen as 
valid as well, as is the cost requested as reimbursement for renting the excavator. 
 
Super Western claims they had planned to utilize a free dumpsite in Delavan to haul material from the project to, 
but due to the 10 days of delay on Commerce Court, had to switch to a different dump site where they were 
charged. This would mean the free site filled up sometime between October 17th and October 29th, when the 
delays took place. Kapur requested additional documentation on the free site, for proof that it was free and that it 
filled up during that time period. Without such documentation there is no way of knowing whether Super 
Western was not able to utilize it because of the delays, or if they would not have been able to use it regardless. 
Furthermore, it is my opinion that the ability or inability to use certain sites to complete the project according the 
contract is entirely the contractor’s responsibility, and any change to a site’s suitability for the project does not 
become the City’s responsibility, but rather the contractor’s duty as means and methods of completing the 
project. 



 Page 2 

Regardless, additional documentation could not be provided to prove what was requested. As a result, I do not 
see the $8800.00 dumpsite reimbursement charge as valid. 
 
I am recommending reimbursement for the first three items, a total of $14,578.72, be made to Super Western 
due to the utility delays encountered as part of the TID #4 Improvements Project. Please let me know if there 
are any questions. 
 












	CouncilAgenda191007
	05 CouncilMinutes Notes 9-16-19 LR
	07 COWMinutes190923
	08 DOC092619-09262019081850
	08 DOC092619-09262019081903
	08 DOC092619-09262019083643
	08 WR 4419946-city of elkhorn
	09b Task 12_2020_Street Improvement Program
	TASK ORDER NUMBER #05
	CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES
	Section B. – Schedule
	Section C. – Compensation
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and Engineer have executed the Task Order.

	09b Task 12_2020_Street Improvement Program_Costs
	Engineer Estimate

	09c Engineer UtilityDelayRecommendation_Memo
	Memorandum to the City of Elkhorn
	Memorandum to the City of Elkhorn
	From: Greg Calhoun
	From: Greg Calhoun

	09c SuperWester_UtilityDelayClaim

